

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE DIVISION
OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES**

LCB File No. R022-20

April 24, 2020

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§1 and 3-5, NRS 439A.081; §2, NRS 439A.081 and 439A.100.

A REGULATION relating to health facilities; revising the manner in which the Department of Health and Human Services will acknowledge receipt of an application for approval of certain new construction on behalf of a health facility; revising requirements concerning notice relating to such an application; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Existing law requires a person to apply for and obtain the approval of the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services before undertaking new construction that exceeds a prescribed cost by or on behalf of a health facility in certain sparsely populated areas. (NRS 439A.100) **Section 1** of this regulation revises the manner in which the Department will acknowledge the receipt of an application for such approval.

Existing regulations require any notice relating to an application for the approval of the Director to be provided: (1) by mail to certain persons; and (2) to the general public by publication in a newspaper of general circulation. (NAC 439A.545) **Section 4** of this regulation additionally authorizes notice to be provided electronically to persons to whom notice is currently required to be provided by mail. **Section 4** also requires notice to be provided to certain health care facilities located in the service area of the proposed project in addition to the persons to whom notice is currently required to be provided. **Sections 2-5** of this regulation remove the requirement that notice be published in a newspaper of general circulation and instead require notice: (1) be published on the Internet website maintained by the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the Department; and (2) be posted in a public facility in the area in which the project is located or will be located.

Section 1. NAC 439A.365 is hereby amended to read as follows:

439A.365 1. The original and three copies of an application for a letter of approval must be submitted by mail or delivered by hand to the Department.

2. Each application submitted to the Department must be accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of \$9,500. The fee must be paid by check made payable to the order of the Department of Health and Human Services.

3. The Department will acknowledge receipt of an application and accompanying fee ~~†~~:

~~—(a) For applications delivered by hand, by a receipt issued to the deliverer at the time of delivery; or~~

~~—(b) For applications received through the mail, by mail†~~ within 5 working days after the date of receipt ~~†~~

~~→ Receipt will be acknowledged†~~ on a form ~~{of receipt†}~~ prescribed by the Department.

Sec. 2. NAC 439A.455 is hereby amended to read as follows:

439A.455 1. In connection with an application made pursuant to NRS 439A.100, the Director will issue to each applicant a letter of approval or disapproval, together with a copy of the written findings of fact issued pursuant to NAC 439A.445. This letter is the official document permitting or denying the applicant's project.

2. A letter of disapproval will contain the reasons for denial.

3. A letter of approval will contain:

(a) A timetable for the project, including a specific date by which the proposed facility must be made available for receiving patients or providing services;

(b) The maximum capital expenditure for the project;

(c) The specific location of the project;

(d) The specific health services and the number of beds identified in the application;

(e) Notice of the requirement that, within 30 days after the date of publication of the decision, the applicant must file with the Department its written acceptance of the decision; and

(f) Each condition placed on the approval which is directly related to the proposed project and the criteria for review.

4. The applicant's failure to accept the letter of approval within 30 days after the date of publication of the decision cancels the letter of approval, and the project may be reinstated only by a new application and review.

5. Public notice of the decision of the Director will be given within 15 days after the date of the decision.

6. The period during which a reconsideration of the decision of the Director must be requested begins on the date on which the notice of the decision ~~first appears in a newspaper of general circulation.~~ *is posted in the manner required pursuant to NAC 439A.545.*

Sec. 3. NAC 439A.515 is hereby amended to read as follows:

439A.515 1. Any person:

(a) Who is the subject of a letter of disapproval;

(b) Whose project has been determined to be subject to review pursuant to NAC 439A.315;

or

(c) Whose letter of approval has been withdrawn pursuant to NAC 439A.505,

↳ may request reconsideration of the decision.

2. A request for reconsideration will be considered by the Director only if:

(a) It is submitted in writing within 30 days after the ~~first~~ date ~~of publication in a newspaper of general circulation.~~ *on which* the notice of the decision for which the

reconsideration is being requested ~~It~~ *is posted in the manner required pursuant to NAC 439A.545*; and

(b) It contains sufficient and adequate documentation of good cause for a reconsideration, which is limited to:

(1) The presentation of significant information relevant to a material issue which was not previously considered by the Director and which, with reasonable diligence, could not have been presented to the Director before the conclusion of the public hearing;

(2) A significant change in a factor or circumstance relied upon by the Director in reaching the decision; or

(3) A showing that the Department has materially failed to follow its procedures in reaching the decision.

3. The Director will, within 15 days after receipt of a request for reconsideration, determine whether good cause is shown as required under subsection 2.

4. If the request for reconsideration is denied, the Director will issue a letter to the person requesting the reconsideration stating the reasons for denial.

5. If the request for reconsideration is granted, the affected decision is set aside and the Director will issue a letter to the person requesting the reconsideration and the applicant or holder of the letter of approval stating the reasons for granting the request.

6. If the Director requests additional information in the letter issued pursuant to subsection 5, the person receiving the request has 15 days from the date of receipt to submit the information requested.

7. The Department will, within 15 days after the date on which reconsideration is granted, schedule and give public notice of a public hearing.

8. The public hearing may be waived upon a written request by the applicant or holder of the letter of approval if:

(a) The applicant or holder of the letter of approval is the only person requesting reconsideration; and

(b) The sole ground for the reconsideration is that the Department failed to follow the adopted procedures.

↪ If the public hearing is waived pursuant to this subsection, public notice of the reconsideration will be given.

9. The person requesting reconsideration shall appear at the public hearing personally or by a representative. If that person fails to appear, the hearing will not be held and the decision for which reconsideration was requested will be reinstated.

10. The decision of the Director will be issued to the applicant or holder of a letter of approval in a letter signed by the Director stating the reasons for the decision, together with written findings of fact, within 30 days after:

(a) The close of the public hearing; or

(b) The date of the granting of the request for reconsideration if the public hearing is waived pursuant to subsection 8.

11. The Director will give public notice of the decision upon reconsideration.

12. The decision of the Director upon reconsideration supersedes the original decision.

Sec. 4. NAC 439A.545 is hereby amended to read as follows:

439A.545 1. Unless otherwise required in NAC 439A.295 to 439A.675, inclusive, notice given pursuant to NAC 439A.295 to 439A.675, inclusive, will be made in accordance with this section.

2. Notice will be provided by mail *or electronically* to:
 - (a) The applicant or the holder of a letter of approval;
 - (b) The person requesting the proceeding for which the notice of the proceeding or the resulting decision is being given; ~~and~~
 - (c) All persons who have requested in writing *or electronically* that they be placed on a ~~mailing~~ list for ~~this~~ the purpose ~~of~~ *of receiving such notice; and*
 - (d) *Any health facility that:*
 - (1) *Holds a license, certificate or permit issued pursuant to chapter 449 of NRS;*
 - (2) *Is located in the service area of the proposed project; and*
 - (3) *Offers health services similar to those offered by the proposed project.*
3. The notice will be provided to the public and all other interested persons by publication *on the Internet website maintained by the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the Department and by posting the notice* in a ~~newspaper of general circulation~~ *public facility that is located* in the area in which the project is located or will be located.
4. For decisions relating to a letter of intent or a letter of determination, the Department will provide the notice required by this section not later than 21 days after such a decision is made.

Sec. 5. NAC 439A.555 is hereby amended to read as follows:

439A.555 ~~HH~~ When a notice of a public hearing is made pursuant to NAC 439A.295 to 439A.675, inclusive, the notice will include:

- ~~HH(a)~~ **1.** The date of the public hearing;
- ~~HH(b)~~ **2.** The time and place of the hearing;
- ~~HH(c)~~ **3.** The nature of the hearing;

~~{(d)}~~ 4. A statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is to be held;

~~{(e)}~~ 5. A reference to the particular sections of state statutes and regulations involved; and

~~{(f)}~~ 6. A short and plain statement of the matters to be asserted.

~~{2. In the case of a hearing for reconsideration of a decision, the notice will be published in two successive issues of a newspaper of general circulation.}~~